



User Manual

Rendr 2.4 Portal Software



Imagine EEG Anywhere®



Attention

No part of this document may be copied or reproduced in any form or by any means without prior written consent of Lifelines Neuro Company, LLC.

Customer Support Info

In case of issues, requests, or for technical support, contact:

Address:	Telephone:
Lifelines Neuro Company, LLC	866.889.6505
900 E. Main Street, Suite 300 Louisville, KY 40206	24/7/365 Normal Business hours 7:30AM-5:00PM CT Afterhours 5:00PM-8:30AM CT, weekends and holidays

E-mail:

support@LifelinesNeuro.com

During normal business hours you can expect a response within 2 hours. Outside normal business hours or holidays, please be advised that it may take up to 48 hours to respond.

For more information, visit www.lifelinesneuro.com

A digital copy of this manual can be accessed through the Rendr Acquisition or Rendr Portal by clicking 'Help' on the main menu.

Software and Virus Protection

Lifelines Neuro takes all reasonable steps to ensure that its software is virus-free. In line with modern computing practice, it is advisable that continual protection against viruses, Trojans, malware, adware etc. is provided on the PC used for installation and the surrounding systems. Please note the following recommendations which should be supported by your internal IT/Computing department procedures and practices:

- 1. Virus protection via Windows Defender has been enabled in your computer settings by Lifelines Neuro. If further virus protection software is desired, please contact the Lifelines Neuro Customer Experience Team to ensure it has been thoroughly tested and will not interfere with your system's performance.
- 2. Virus scanning should be set to manual mode or automatic if desired but at a time when the system is not being used.
- 3. All programs offering auto-update features, including Windows, should be set to manual or automatic if desired but at a time when the system is not being used.
- 4. Adopt formal departmental or organisational procedures to ensure the integrity and safe operation of the medical equipment and supporting systems.



Disclaimers

Lifelines Neuro manufactures hardware and software to be used on or with standard PC-compatible computers and operating software. Lifelines Neuro, however, assumes no responsibility for the use or reliability of its software or hardware with equipment that is not furnished by third-party manufacturers accepted by Lifelines Neuro at the date of purchase.

All warranties for third-party products used within the system are the responsibility of the relevant manufacturer. Please refer to the relevant documentation on each product for further details.

This document contains proprietary information that is protected by copyright. All rights are reserved. No part of this document may be photocopied, reproduced in any other form or translated into another language without the prior written consent of Lifelines Neuro.

Trademarks

Microsoft and Windows are registered trademarks of the Microsoft Corporation. All other trademarks and product names are the property of their relevant owners.





Getting to Know the Rendr Portal

The Rendr Portal is your gateway to accessing EEG data that has been recorded on your Lifelines Neuro EEG amplifiers and systems. If you are using our legacy Trackit+ software, you must first upload your CF or SD card data to the Rendr Portal to access it.

If using Rendr Acquisition, the Rendr software runs on the PC to acquire data from the amplifier, streaming it to the Rendr Portal for daily reporting.

The Rendr Portal was built on the cloud, for the cloud, hosted by AWS (Amazon Web Services), ensuring the highest levels of data security and HIPAA ready compliance.

The Rendr Portal can be accessed on multiple browsers and devices, creating easy access for EEG technologists, physicians and medical office staff. For the best performance, Chrome is the recommended browser.

This manual outlines the uses and functionality of the Rendr Portal.





Contents

1	Acc	ess Rendr Portal
	1.1	Accessing Rendr Portal
	1.2	Accessing Rendr Portal Login
	1.3	Rendr Portal Dashboard
2	The	Dashboard
	2.1	Dashboard Overview
	2.2	Patients
	2.3	Rendr Portal Studies
	2.4	Rendr Portal Import Studies
	2.5	Rendr Portal Users
	2.6	Amplifiers Icon
	2.7	Cameras Icon
	2.8	Devices Icon
	2.9	Facilities Icon
	2.10	Help Icon
3	Pas	sword Management
	3.1	Password Management
4	Fac	ilities
5	Hel	o Screen
6		iew Study
	6.1	Review Study
	6.2	Event Banner and Ribbon Menu at bottom of trace
7	Acc	ess to Studies



1 Access Rendr Portal

1.1 Accessing Rendr Portal

The Rendr Portal can be accessed from multiple browsers, however the preferred platform is Google Chrome. Using another browser may affect the performance during the review of a study.



1.2 Accessing Rendr Portal Login

The URL will be provided by the Lifelines Neuro Customer Experience Team by an email.

Enter the Rendr Portal Login information provided by the Lifelines Neuro Customer Experience Team into the Rendr Portal Login screen.

	Login
	amy.jones@generalneuro.com
	LOGIN
	Forgot Password?
rendr PLATFORM © 20	021 Lifelines Neuro

Rendr Portal Login



1.3 Rendr Portal Dashboard

From the Rendr Portal Dashboard the user will have access to various areas of the Portal.

	Lifelines Neuro Company					
MENU 🤇			-			
Dashboard	STUDIES IN PROGRESS	STUDIES FOR REVIEW	TOTAL STUDIES			
 Patients 	5253	1036	6307			
Studies						
Import						
A Users	Latest Studies					
Amplifiers					\sim	
 Cameras 			9			
Facilities	Soliday, C.	90	liday, C.		Soliday, C.	
Help	Updated Yesterday at 03		Yesterday at 12:55 pm		Yesterday at 02:56 pm	
		3m 57s Duration	2m 40s	Duration	26m 7s	
		_				
	OPEN		OPEN	(OPEN	
rendr PLATFORM © 2021 L	ifelines Neuro bulla - 2.4.472.2 2.4.283				F	eedback

Rendr Portal dashboard



2 The Dashboard

2.1 Dashboard Overview

2.1.1 Dashboard

The Rendr Portal dashboard menu allows user access to modules within the Rendr Portal to include:

Dashboard		Lifelines Neuro Company						
Patients	MENU K	STUDIES IN PROGRE		NES FOR REVIEW	TOTAL STUDIES			
Studies	 Dashboard Patients 	5253		036	6307			
Import	 Studies Import 							
*Users	Users	Latest Studies						
*Amplifiers	 Amplifiers Cameras 		0,				0	
 *Devices 	Facilities	Soli	day, C. Yesterday at 03:32 pm	Updated	Soliday, C. Yesterday at 12:55 pm	Updated	Soliday, C. Yesterday at 02:56 pm	
 *Cameras 						Duration		
 *Facilities 			IPEN	(OPEN	(OPEN	
• Help	rendr PLATFORM © 2021	ifelines Neuro 1944 - 244 4722	124233				E	eedback

Rendr Portal Menu

Menu arrow allows the user to minimize the icon view or maximize to the full menu.

NOTE: *Access is determined by the user's level of permission.

2.1.2 Dashboard Icon

⑦ Dashboard

The Dashboard icon allows the user to navigate to the dashboard and exit currently selected modules.

The user may also navigate to the dashboard by selecting the **Rendr Platform Cloud** logo above the **Dashboard** icon.



2.1.3 Dashboard Facility Dropdown List

The Facility Dropdown list allows access to multiple facilities when more than one facility is associated with the Rendr Portal user's account.

	,	General Hospital 🛛 🔻	
MENU	~	Facilities	
⑦ Dashboard		✓ General Hospital	STUDIES FOR REVIEW
		Averget Silver	110
 Patients 		Bata 2.4 - Healthquist Neurod.	142
Studies		Ben J.A. Influenz	
a Import		Belo J.4 - Neurosetion Diagra-	
요 Users		Creation	
Amplifiers		820 - Minin Community College	

Facilities Drop Down List

NOTE: *Access is determined by the user's level of permission.

2.1.4 Studies Tiles

The first three tiles located at the top of the Rendr Portal Dashboard.



Studies Tiles



2.1.5 Studies in Progress Tile

Studies in Progress Tile displays a filtered study list of all studies with the status of In Progress for the facility that the user has permission to view.



Studies In Progress Tile

G google chrome icon - Google S= 🗙 📔 🕂							- 0 ×
m/studies#InProgress						j	० 🔉 🌘 :
ral Hospital						A	umy Jones 🚺
Studies							
							Advanced
				-	28.177		Q
Patient Name	Patient ID	SSN	Date	 Duration 	v	ideo	
		Your search resulted	in no matches				
r	vistudies#inProgress al Hospital]) Studies	vistudies ^{man} Progress	visudierfin/Progress al Hospital Studies Patient Name Patient ID SSN	visudies ^{hinp} rogress al Hospital] Studies	visuidie#MPPogress al Hospital Studies In Progress × Any Time: × Patient Name Patient ID SSN Date • Duration	visudierfinProgress al Hospital Studies In Progress ▼ Any Time ▼ Any Sync State ▼ X Patient Name Patient ID SSN Date ▼ Dwiation V	visuidie#MPPogress

Selected Tile Patients In Progress list



2.1.6 Studies for Review Tile

Studies for Review Tile displays a filtered study list of all studies with the status of Pending Review for the facility.



Studies For Review Tile

rendr - T	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2						ର ଜ 🍘
	General Hospital						Amy Jones (
enu 🤞	Studies						
Dashboard	- Studies						Advanced
Patients				Pending Rev	iew ▼ Any Time ▼ Any Sync St	ate 🔻 🗶 S	earch Q
Studies	Patient Name	Patient ID		Date	👻 Duration	Video	
Import			***- 6789 c Complete	December 14 at 11:28 pm			₩420
Users				December 14 at 11:23 pm			₩ 4⊞ ñ
Amplifiers							
Cameras		12345		December 14 at 11:21 pm			₩<≋ @
Facilities							
Help							

Selected Tile Patients Pending Review list





2.1.7 Total Studies Tile

Total Studies Tile displays a complete study list of all studies with any status for the facility.



Total Studies Tile

	ieneral Hospital						Amy Jones
NU K	Studies						
Dashboard							Advanced
Patients				Pending Rev	iew ♥ Any Time ♥ Any Sync S	tate 💌 🗶 S	earch Q
	Patient Name	Patient ID	SSN	Date	- Duration	Video	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Import			***- 6789 c Complete	December 14 at 11:28 pm			₩480
Users Amplifiers				December 14 at 11:23 pm			₩ <≔ 8
Cameras		12345. pliber Name. Syn		December 14 at 11:21 pm		-	₩<≋ 0
Facilities							
Help							

Selected Tile Patients Any Status list



2.1.8 Graph displaying the weekday and the studies traffic by day

This graph is located at the bottom of the Studies in Progress, Studies for Review and Total Studies Tile Graph.



Total Tile Graph

2.1.9 Latest Studies (Three Tiles)

Latest Studies displays three tiles of the most recent studies performed. Users may view the patient name, last update, and duration. The user may access the study by selecting the **Open** icon.



Latest Studies (three tiles)

The user may access additional patient information by selecting the **Patient Info Person** icon which flips the tile to display the Patient's Name, Date of Birth, and SSN. Selecting the tile again returns to the previous display.

Name	Name	Name
DOB: 05/08/2019	DOB: 05/08/2019	DOB: 05/08/2019
Patient ID: 24184564245	Patient ID: 24184564245	Patient ID: 24184564245
SSN: ***-4732	SSN: ***-4732	SSN: ***_**-4732







2.1.10 Last Five Studies

Patient Name	Patient ID	Date	Duration	
	24184564245	Yesterday at 03:32 pm	3m 57s	
	24184564245	Yesterday at 12:55 pm	2m 40s	
	24184564245	Yesterday at 02:56 pm	26m 7s	
	24184564245	January 27 at 02:35 am	4m 57s	
	24184564245	January 27 at 02:02 am	54s	

Last Five Studies

Last 5 Studies, the last five most recent studies performed listed by:

- Patient Name
- Patient ID
- Date (if from previous day)
- Time when study began
- Duration length of study



2.2 Patients

2.2.1 Patients Icon



The **Patients** icon allows access to the user's facility patient directory listing. *For additional functions see Patients

2.2.2 Patients

- From the Dashboard Menu select Patients icon.
- Users will be able to create, edit and sort patient information from this window.
- Users will be able to upload and/or download documents associated with the patient.
- Select Patients icon in the Dashboard Menu to return to patients list.



Patient window



2.2.3 Creating a New Patient

1. First verify that the patient is not currently in the system by entering the patient's name into the search bar.

-	Patients		
ĮΞ	Search	Q	& +

2. If the patient is not found, select the **Create a New Patient** icon at the upper left corner of the patient list.



3. **Create Patient** page will display, enter the Patient's information. Fields marked with an asterisk * are required (no dashes required if using SSN).

First* First Name Middle Middle Name Last* Last Name DOB* ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	🛓 Crea	te Patient		
Last* Last Name DOB* Last Name Sex SSN SSN	First*	First Name		
DOB* mm/dd/yyyy Sex SSN	Middle	Middle Name		
Sex ~ SSN SSN	Last*	Last Name		
SSN SSN	DOB*	mm/dd/yyyy		
	Sex		~	
Patient ID Patient ID	SSN	SSN		
	Patient ID	Patient ID		
SAVE			SAVE	

Create Patient display window

4. Select Save, shows Patient Saved!



2.2.4 Sort and Search Patient List

The Sort icon allows the user to sort patients ascending and descending



Enter the Name, SSN last four, or ID number into the search bar to access the patient.



2.2.5 Edit Patients

- 1. Select the Patient to edit.
- 2. Choose the **Pencil** icon 🖌 to edit.
- 3. Update Patient information as required.
- 4. Select Save, shows Patient Saved!
- 5. Select Patients in the Dashboard Menu to return to Patients List.

🚢 Edit P	atient
First*	Video Test!
Middle	Middle Name
Last*	*
DOB*	08/01/2019
Sex	mm/dd/yyyy
SSN	SSN
Patient ID	Video Test
	SAVE

Edit Patients



2.2.6 Rendr Portal Patients Documents Upload



Documents Tab (right) allows attachment of documents associated with the patient through the drag and drop method to upload documents or via the **Cloud Upload** icon (left) where the user may search for the file to attach.



Once there are documents uploaded to the patient's file, the user may also download these documents with the **Cloud Download** icon.

If the user downloads a document from Rendr you will receive a display stating "You are about to download a document that may contain confidential patient information. Doing so may violate HIPAA rules. Are you sure you want to do this?". Select OK or cancel.





The **Lock** icon allows users to lock their uploaded documents which prevents deletion of the document by another user.

 Uploaded 	Lock
12/15/2020	Amy Islan 🔒 💩
😨 Öpen	×
← → × ↑ 🕹 > This PC >	loads 🗸 🦉 🖉 Search Downloads
Organize 🔻 New folder	J 💷 🔻 🛄 🚷
Desktop A Nar Downloads To	Date modified Type Size ^
📴 Documents 🖉 📑	, June 12/22/2020 2:11 PM Microsoft Word D 12 KF Istaller (2) 12/22/2020 9:22 AM Application 14,427 KF ↓
File name:	✓ All Files ✓
	Open Cancel

Documents Upload



Cloud Download



2.3 Rendr Portal Studies

2.3.1 Studies Icon



The Studies icon displays all studies located in the facilities database to which the user has access.

*For additional functions see Studies

2.3.2 Studies

From the Dashboard Menu select the Studies icon.

The Studies List displays studies associated with the user's facility and/or shared to the user, the number of visible studies will depend on the user's permission level.

The user may sort Studies by:

- Any Status: In Progress, Pending Review, Report Complete
- Any Time: Hour, 24 Hours, Week, Month, Year
- Any Sync State: Synchronization Incomplete, Synchronization Completed, Synchronization Failed
- Or the user may enter the Name, SSN last four, or ID number into the search bar to access patient information.

The Advanced filter allows the user to filter patients by Empty Studies and/or Deleted Studies.

	ral Hospital						Amy Jones
· <] Studies						
Dashboard						ate 💌 🍸 Si	Advanced
Patients					y Status 🔻 Any Time 🔻 Any Sync St	ate 🕶 👔 Si	earch Q
Studies	Patient Name	Patient ID	SSN	Date	 Duration 	Video	
Import				December 14 at 11:28 pm			₩ < 🗉 û
Users Amplifiers				December 14 at 11:23 pm			₩ <⊞ 0
Cameras				December 14 at 11:21 pm			₩ <≔ 0
Facilities							
Help							

Studies Filter Bar with Advanced Search





2.3.3 Studies List

Patient studies are listed by Name, ID, SSN, Date, Duration, and Video.

A Patient with multiple studies is shown with a > and number count prior to the patient's name, select > before the number to expand the number of studies associated with the selected patient to view the individual studies associated with the selected patient.

The Study currently being acquired will show Data and Video percentage, and a red LIVE icon.

The Video icon appears if the selected study includes video.

MENU Dashboard	Studies					
Patients						
El Studies		Patient Name	Patient ID	SSN		Date
Import	>3	Study ID:	Amplifier Name: OF: TKM 2005 Data: 258		Video: 1005	10 minutes ago

Studies List Expanded with LIVE

2.3.4 Studies List Book Icon



The **Book** icon opens the selected study.

2.3.5 Studies List Share and Shared Users



The **Share** icon allows the user to share the selected study with other users associated with the facility, or someone with approval to view studies outside of the facility. They will receive an email notification with a 24-hour window to respond.

Select the **Share** icon, a window will display the patient's name and a drop-down list, select the recipient of the shared study, select the name, and then select share. A message will show Study successfully shared.

The recipient of the shared study will receive an email with a link to the study which navigates to the Portal, the study will open after the shared user logs into the Rendr Portal.



The **Handshake** icon displays to whom the study has been shared and the date when the study was shared.

Share Study		
Name: Doe, John		
Please choose the users to share th	e study with:	
Select		
	HARE CANCEL	
	CHINGEL	



2.3.6 Studies List Audit Logs

_	
_	

The Audit Logs provide a list of users by name, role, date, and length of time study monitored. There are two views available, the CPT Monitoring Logs and All Audit Logs.

These logs may be downloaded via .csv file by selecting the Cloud Download icon.



2.3.7 Studies List Delete Study



The **Trash** icon allows the user to mark a study for deletion, a window will appear to confirm the deletion with a yes or no.

NOTE: The ability to delete studies depends on permission access and the availability to retrieve the study after deletion will be determined by facility deletion time setting selection.



2.4 Rendr Portal Import Studies

2.4.1 Import Icon (dependent on facilities acquisition software)



2.4.2 Dropdown Menu for selection of acquisition software



- Trackit+ Study
- Cloud Sync Package

The user may import a study to the Rendr Portal from Trackit+ Software or Rendr Platform Cloud Sync Package, this is determined by the Facilities' Acquisition software.

NOTE: For additional functions see Import

2.4.3 Import Options

- The Import study to the Rendr Portal from Trackit+ Software or Rendr Platform Cloud Sync Package is dependent on Facilities' Acquisition software.
- To Import a study from the Patient icon list search or create a New Patient select the Paper/Arrow icon to import the study.
- To Import a study from the **Import** icon Trackit+ Study, search and select the patient to upload the study.
- To Import study from Import icon Cloud Sync Pkg, select **Select Folder** to upload files associated with the study.

NOTE: Each option will direct the user to Import Screen

-5



2.4.4 Import Screen

There are 5 Steps Import Process:

- 1. Select Folder files that are associated with the patient's study.
- 2. Verify the files with the patient to upload with the patient name in Rendr.
- 3. Upload Files are the selected files to import.
- 4. Import Study Data, once the files are uploaded the Import of the Study Data conversion will begin.
- 5. The **Summary** will verify when the upload is complete, the user may select to close the study or share the study and select a user to send it to for review.

		Import Cloud S	Sync Package		
	-0-	<u> </u>	-0-	-0-	—
Select Folder	Verify	Upload Files	Process Data	Process Videos	Summary
	C	EEG Data A single .EDF file or one or more .	BDF files	•	
		Events One .TEV / .TVX file for each EEG	data file	0	
	C	Videos Optional .MP4 / .AVI video files		3	
	C	Cloud Sync Package Valida Check that all the right files are pr		0	
		SELECT F	OLDER		

Import Screen

2.4.5 Import Screen Select Folder

- 1. To upload a study, go to Select Folder icon.
- 2. Browse to the location of the file containing Patient Study Files.
- 3. Select the folder with patient files to upload (the folder will appear empty due to uploading the entire folder, not individual files).
- 4. The user will receive a message stating "Upload # files to this site? This will upload all files from (patient folder name). Only do this if you trust this site."
- 5. Select Upload icon.







2.4.6 Import Screen Verify



The screen will verify if the user wants to Upload files to this site.

Verify ensures the files are compatible and the study matches the patient to which the user is importing the study.

- Verify the information
- Selected Study: Name, Duration, Study Started, Channel Count, Sample Rate, Video Count
- Selected Patient: Name, DOB, ID, Sex, SSN, Facility Name
- The **Back** icon *e* allows the user to return to the previous Select Folder screen if the user needs to select a different folder and files.
- · Select Continue if the files selected to upload and patient information are correct.

2.4.7 Import Screen Upload Files



The **Upload Files** icon is the process of copying files to the AWS (Amazon Web Services) that hosts the Rendr Portal..

The first status bar displays the progress of each file associated with the study. (Example, if there are six total files, the status bar will show the progress of each file as they upload, the second file of six total files is in what percentage in the progress of uploading.)

Second status bar shows the progress percentage of the entire group of files to be uploaded.

Rate of upload depends on the internet upload speed. The recommended speed for uploading is 10 MB or higher.

	lin	nport Study for Cam, Trac	kit	
O	-0	- 0-	-0	—
Select Folder	Verify	Upload Files Upload will finish in an hour.	Import Study Data	Summary
(148 / 295 files) 75%			0000000	TRKCAMTT.BDF
Total progress: 8%				
		CANCEL		

Import Status Bars

NOTE: Keep this window open until the process is complete.



2.4.8 Import Study Data



Once the study has uploaded to the Portal, the data is converted to the Rendr Portal format and the import process has begun.

The first status bar indicates the Data Import progress percentage.

The second status bar indicates the Video progress percentage.



Import Study Data import status bar

NOTE: Keep this window open until the process is complete.

2.4.9 Rendr Portal Import Screen Import Study Summary



When the import is complete, the **Summary** will be displayed, and the message *Study has successfully been imported.* The user may close this tab.

A green check mark will be displayed when each uploaded task is complete, if there is a red x, there may be an issue with the file and troubleshooting may be needed.

The recommended internet speed is at least 10 Mbps Upload and Download speed.

When complete there are options to Close or Share the study.

Select the **Share** icon, a window will display the patient's name and a drop-down list, select the recipient of the shared study, select the name, and then select share, a message will display Study successfully shared.

The recipient of the shared study will receive an email with a link to the study which navigates to the Portal, the study will open after the shared user logs into the Rendr Portal.



Import Study Summary



2.5 Rendr Portal Users

2.5.1 Users Icon



The **Users** icon allows management of facility users by the Facility Administrator

NOTE: Access is determined by the user's level of permission.

2.5.2 Current User Information (top right of dashboard)

- Selecting the **Person** icon (2) located beside the user's name expands the User information menu.
- The drop-down menu includes the user profile, language, and a sign-out option to exit the portal.
- Under Your Profile, General includes the Username, Facility, Email, and Studies the user has monitored.

Monitored Studies allows access to the studies the user has monitored by date and time. Patients are listed by name, date of birth, ID, and time monitored. The user may filter by time or action. The **Cloud** icon allows the user to Download Report into a file in the .cvs format.

General		
First Name Piers	Last Name Cross	Middle Name
Email piers.cross@lifelinesneuro.com	Title	Suffix
MONITORED STUDIES		

Monitored Studies Button

- Selecting the User Profile person icon, Your Profile returns to the previous screen.
- Security allows users to change their password by completing the required fields: new password, confirm password, and current password. Select change password to reset.

Security	!			
New Password	New Password	۲	Current Password	Current Password
Confirm Password	Confirm Password	۲		
				CHANGE PASSWORD



- Language option selected for the user.
- The Sign Out option allows the user to exit the Rendr Portal.
- Selecting the **Dashboard** icon returns to Lifelines Neuro Rendr Portal Dashboard.

2.5.3 Users

The Users icon allows the Facility Administrator to manage all Users associated with their facility.

The **Invite** icon allows the user to give a person access and specify their permission role, and the invited user will receive an email to access the Rendr Portal.

rendr	rendmeuro.com/Users		Q 🕁 🍘
REATFORM L	General Hospital		Amy Jones
NU K.	요 Users		INVITE
Dashboard	Name	 Email 	
Patients			
Studies	Adams, Cindy	cindy.adams@generalneuro.com.	
Import	Chang, David	david.chang@generalneuro.com	
Users	Garcia, Jose	jose.garcia@generalneuro.com	
Amplifiers	Jones, Amy	amy jones@generalneuro.com	
Cameras	Simpson, Ron	ron.simpson@generalneuro.com	
Facilities			



The Users icon allows access to:

- User's Name
- Email
- Audit Logs icon (Monitoring History by date and length of time, with the option to export to a .csv file.)
- The **Pencil** icon allows the user to edit user information and role permission assignments.
- The Info icon displays the user's Facility and Facility Role.
- The Trash icon allows the user to delete a User, the Facility Administrator may reinstate the user if required.

NOTE: Access is determined by the user's level of permission.

INVITE



USER MANUAL

2.5.4 Inviting a New User

The **Invite** icon allows the user to give an individual access and specify their permission role, the invited user will receive an email to access the Rendr Portal.

The user will have 24 hours to activate the Rendr Platform Portal access, after 24 hours the link will expire and the user will need to contact the Facility Administrator to request a new email link.

1 Select Invite icon to select the User to give access.

Rendr Review - Users	× +		- a x
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow C i iii help.ref	idmeuro.com/Users		९ 🕁 🌘 ।
	ieneral Hospital		Amy Jones 💽
MINU. K	요 Users		INVITE
Dashboard			
A Patients	Name	Email	
3 Studies	Adams, Cindy	cindy.adams@generalneuro.com	(E / 1 B
Import I	Chang, David	david.chang@generalneuro.com	田 / 王 8
🗓 Users	Garcia, Jose	jose.garcia@generalneuro.com	10 / 1 B
T Amplifiers	Jones. Amy	amy jones@generalneurn.com	13 × 1 8
 Cameras 	Simpson, Ron	ron.simpson@generalneuro.com	ii: / i 0
8 Facilities			
🔆 Help			1 1 1 1 1 2
rendr PLATFORM © 2020 Li	felines Neuro - bold - 2440 (124453)		Powered by SIDIS

Select the user to invite

- 2 Select the **email address** of the individual to add as User and give access.
- 3 Next select the **Role** for new User (see User Roles) to select the permissions.
- 4 Add the Facility Name and select Send.

The **New User** will receive an email link to the Rendr Portal and have access according to the permissions of the selected Role.

	Send Facility	- Invitation	
		nail address and specify the role of th ke to invite to your Rendr platform fa	
adams@generi	Email	Enter Invitee Email Address	
.chang@genera arcia@generali	Role	Please select a role	*
ones@generaln	Facility	General Hospital	
mpson@genera		SEND	CANCEL



User Roles and Permissions

Roles determine the level of permission access the user has when utilizing Rendr Portal and Acquisition. The User Role is selected when the Invite new user email is sent from the Rendr Portal.

		Rend	lr Platform Portal Ro	oles 2.4 External and	Internal			
Ro	e Facility Admin	Review Doctor	Lead Tech	Field Tech	Office Pers	Support	Production	Super Admin
Dashboard	×	x	x	x	×	x		×
view Patient	х	\$	x	s	x	x		x
Create Patient	х		x	x	x	x		×
Edit Patient	х		x	x	x	x		×
idd Documents	х	S	x	x	x	х		x
riew Studies List	x	s	x	S	x	x		×
Tew (Open) Study	x	5	x	5		x		×
dit Study	х	5	x	5		х		×
hare Study	x	s	×	s		x		×
fiew Shared Users	x	s	x	x		x		×
riew Studies Audit Log	Х		x			х		X
fark Study for Deletion	х		x			x		×
mport Study	х		x	x		x		x
fiew User	х		X			х		X
nvite User	Х					x		X
reate User						x		×
fiew User Audit Logs	х		x			х		х
idit User	х					х		×
Delete User	x					x		×
reate Amplifier			CONTACT UPEUNES SUPPORT TO	ADD AN ACQUISITION DEVICE TO YOUR P	ACILITY			x
new Amplifier	x					x	x	x
treate Device			CONTACT UPEUNES SUPPORT TO	ADD AN ACQUISITION DEVICE TO YOUR P	ACUTY		×	×
fiew Device						x	x	×
reate Cameras		CONTACT LIFE	UNES SUPPORT TO ADD AN ACQUISITIO	N DEVICE TO YOUR FACILITY		x	x	×
fiew Cameras	х					х	x	x
riew multiple Facilities*	X*	Х*	Х*	X*	X*	х	x	×
idit Facility	x							×
lelp	х	x	x	x	x	x	x	×
••••USER MUST BE A USER IN THE FACILITIES 6 – Shared or Created – the user cand do this if the study is sl K – The user has full permission for the function.	ared with him/her or if they	created the study.		•	•		•	•

Chart of Roles

Rendr Platform Portal Roles 2.4 External and Internal								
Role	Facility Admin	Review Doctor	Lead Tech	Field Tech	Office Pers	Support	Production	Super Admin
Dashboard	x	x	×	x	x	х		×
View Patient	x	s	x	s	x	x		×
Create Patient	x		x	x	x	x		x
Edit Patient	х		x	x	x	x		x
Add Documents	х	S	x	х	x	х		x
View Studies List	x	S	x	5	x	x		x
View (Open) Study	x	5	x	5		x		×
Edit Study	х	s	x	5		x		×
Share Study	х	s	x	s		х		×
View Shared Users	x	s	x	x		x		×
View Studies Audit Log	х		х			х		x
Mark Study for Deletion	x		x			х		×
Import Study	х		x	x		x		x
View User	х		x			х		x
Invite User	х					х		x
Create User						х		×
View User Audit Logs	х		x			х		x
Edit User	х					х		x
Delete User	x					х		×
Create Amplifier			CONTACT UPELINES SUPPORT TO	ADD AN ACQUISITION DEVICE TO YOUR F	ICLITY			x
View Amplifier	х					х	x	x
Create Device			CONTACT UPEUNES SUPPORT TO	ADD AN ACQUISITION DEVICE TO YOUR F	KOL/TY		×	×
View Device						x	×	×
Create Cameras		CONTACT LIFEUM	ES SUPPORT TO ADD AN ACQUISITION	DEVICE TO YOUR FACILITY		x	×	×
View Cameras	х					х	x	x
View multiple Facilities*	Х*	х*	X*	X*	X*	x	×	×
Edit Facility	x							×
Help	х	x	x	x	x	x	X	x
In the stand with the study.								

Chart of Customer Roles Descriptions



2.5.5 Edit User



The **Pencil Edit** icon allows a user with permissions to edit the Users associated with the facility. Edit allows updates to the user's title, first, middle, last name, suffix, email address, and role at the facility which establishes the user's permissions.

rendr	General Hospital	
MENU:	<u>़</u> ि Edit User	
Dashboard		
Patients	Title	Title
Studies	First*	Cindy
Import.	Middle	Middle Name-
Users	Last*	Adams
Amplifiers	Suffix	Suffix
Cameras	Email*	cindy.adams@generalneuro.com
Facilities	Role*	ReviewDoctor 👻
0) Help		SAVE

Edit User Window

2.5.6 Delete User

Ш

The **Trash** icon allows users to be deleted from the portal. Once the user is deleted, they will appear grayed out in the list for the facility and will no longer have access to the Rendr Portal for the facility. The Facility Administrator may re-invite the user to the Rendr Portal if required.



Delete User Confirmation



2.6 Amplifiers Icon

Amplifiers

A list of all amplifier models associated with the facility.

NOTE: Access is determined by the user's level of permission.

2.7 Cameras Icon

Cameras

A list of all camera models associated with the facility.

NOTE: Access is determined by the user's level of permission.

2.8 Devices Icon

Devices

A list of all camera models associated with the facility.

NOTE: Access is determined by the user's level of permission.

2.9 Facilities Icon

Facilities

All facilities associated with the user's account.

NOTE: Access is determined by the user's level of permission.

2.10 Help Icon

⑦ Help

The Help icon provides access to Manuals and contact information for Telephone and Email Support.





3 Password Management

3.1 Password Management

On the Rendr Portal Login screen is a link to reset a password.

The user will select **Forgot Password** and enter an email address. An email will be sent to the user from Account Recovery.

Check the user.name@lifelinesneuro.com inbox for instructions from us on how to reset the password. If there is no password reset email after 10 minutes check the spam folder.

The user will:

- Enter new password
- Confirm new password
- Select Reset Password

Support is also available if help is needed by calling the Customer Experience team at 1-866-889-6505.

	Login	
	amy.jones@generalneuro.com	
	LOGIN	
	Forgot Password?	
rendr PLATFORM © 20	021 Lifelines Neuro	

Password Management Screen



4 Facilities

Facilities

- The **Facilities** icon lists the name or names of the facilities associated with the user account, (most Facility Administrators will only have one facility listed).
- The **Domain** is the Facility web address (when applicable).
- The **Date Created** is when the facility was added to the Rendr Portal.
- The **Pencil** icon is the ability to edit Facility Name, Domain, Dropdown to select when studies are cleared, and Study Notes Template.
- To set a parameter to **Clear Local Studies** select the length of time for the local studies to be viewable. The selection options range from never to 90 days.

	General Hospital	
(MENU	🗄 Edit Fac	ility
⑦ Dashboard		
Patients	Facility Name*	General Hospital
Studies	Domain*	hospitalneuro.com The facility web domain
🗄 Import 🛛 🗸	Clear Local Studies	After 30 days
Trackit+ Study		
Cloud Sync Pkg	Study Notes	
요 Users	Template	
Amplifiers		
Cameras	Date Created	01-26-2021, 9:11:18 pm
E Facilities		SAVE

Edit Facility and Local Studies Dropdown

NOTE: Access is determined by the user's level of permission.



5 Help Screen

⑦ Help

The **Help** icon provides access to manuals, phone, and email contact information for support if issues should arise.

	General Hospital
MENU	⑦ Help
⑦ Dashboard	
- Patients	Documentation
Studies	Trackit M System Manual: Download Rendr Cloud Help Guide: Download
-5 Import v	% Telephone Support
Trackit+ Study	 Number: 866.889.6505 24/7/365 Normal business hours 8:30a-5:00p CT
Cloud Sync Pkg	All support questions
요 Users	 Afterhours 5:00p-8:30a CT, weekends and holidays Recording or reviewing emergencies
Amplifiers	⊠ Email Support
Cameras	Email: support@Lifelinesneuro.com
Facilities	 During normal business hours you can expect a response within 2 hours. Outside normal business hours or holidays, please be advised that it may take up to 48 hours to respond.
⑦ Help	

Help Screen





6 Review Study

6.1 Review Study

Studies

Select the Studies icon from the menu list, then select the patient's study to review.

ENU K	Studies						
Dashboard							Advanced
Patients			<u> </u>	Ar	iy Status 🔻 Any Time 👻 Any Sync S	tate 💌 🍸	Search Q
] Studies	Patient Name			Date		Video	
Import				December 14 at 11:28 pm			₩ < 13 0
Users				December 14 at 11:23 pm	38m 17s		u < ie o
Cameras		12345 Illier Name - Mill Job Sy		December 14 at 11:21 pm	26m 21s	-	₩ <≔ 0
Facilities							

Studies List

To open the study, select the patient's name or **Book** icon.

The study status, In Progress, Pending Review, or Complete will appear in the top right corner.



The Functions across the top menu bar of the study are:

- The Back arrow allows the user to return to the Studies List.
- · Icons to adjust how the study is viewed include:
- Montage,
- Low Frequency,
- High Frequency
- Notch
- Sensitivity
- Time Base

Each has a dropdown arrow menu to select the various options available.





6.1.1 Review Info Icon



- The **Review Info** icon allows the user to view:
- Patient demographics
- Type of Import Trackit+ or Rendr Acquisition

The Change Patient icon may be used to reassociate a study to a different patient if the need arises.

Ceneral Hospital PLATFORM General Hospital MONTAGE LOW FREQUEN BioCalibration w 7142 016 sec	Change Patient		In Progress Piers Cross 💽
24134564245 May. 8 2019 Type Longterm Monitoring EEG Created 01-28-2021, 03:32:03 pm Duration 3m 57s Device Soliday's Dell XPS Amplifier:	From this patient: ID: 24184564245 DOB: May, 8 2019	To this patient:	Recording 3 Start 01-28-2021, 01:51:44 pm Stop Not stopped yet Duration 31s Events 3 Notes
Type T4A Name Nathan T4A		ASSIGN CANCEL	

Change and/or Search For Patient

PLATFORM		In Progress Piers Cross
MONTAGE LOW FREQUEN Change Patient SinCalibration ~ 1 Hz offerer		. / []
From this patient:	To this patient:	ording 3
May, 8 2019		
Type Longterm Monitoring EEG	ID: Video Test Stat	
Created 01-28-2021, 03:32:03 pm DOB: May 8 2019 Duration 3m 57s	DOB: Aug. 1 2019	
Device Soliday's Dell XPS	Not	es
Amplifier:		
Туре Т4А		
Name Nathan T4A		

Reassign Study To New Patient

The Recording information includes start, stop, duration of study, number of events, and notes.

Study Details

- Field for additional information
- Study ID, CPT Code, Tech Initials, Notes

Doctor Report

- Fields for additional information
- Doctor and Notes

Complete Study icon

• Once study review is complete, the physician will select **Complete Study** icon to move study to the **Complete** status.

Select Review Info icon to return to the previous view of the study.


6.1.2 Quick Note Icon

talking



The Quick Note icon allows the user to add comments to the study from a list of comment options:

- eyes open
 eyes closed
 - losed movement
- blinks
 laughing

- crying
- chewing
- swallow yawn

6.1.3 Add Note Icon



Quick Note Dropdown Menu

The **Add Note** icon allows the user to click on a graph and drag to expand the area (if required) anywhere on the graph to add a note.



Clic add a note to the study here ote

Add Note Icon Drag To Expand







6.1.4 Study Events Filing Cabinet Icon



The Study Events Filing Cabinet icon contains events and comments annotated in the study.

			Pending Review Amy Jones 🕘
₩OTCH 60 Hz	SENSITIVITY V 7 µV/mm	TIME BASE TO sec	, i 🗵 🗈 🗄
		Blinks Note	June 24, 2020 June 24, 2020 Video Start Start Recording 1 11262 Blinks Note 11262
			Blinks Note 11.263 Blinks Note 11.263
Marrison Carry	martin te lymen promised the south	Armon Marine Junium and	Calibration Mode Catibration mode started Normal Mode EEG restarted 11:27:3 Ω Impedance Measurement

Filing Cabinet Icon



The Study Notes icon contains comment entries and event push buttons.

						Amy Jone	s 🕐
OTCH Hz	SENSITIVITY V/mm	TIME BASE		, i	ß	8 🖸	÷
my man				力一開			1
		marken Mark		Blinks _{Note} Blinks	ne 24, 20	7	11:26:28
multi	and an			Blinks			11:26:31
				Note			11:20:34
wallow of a		Marine Marine	And a				÷

- The Notes may be viewed, edited, and deleted as required.
- Notes that are starred are considered important events, this allows for Non-Destructive pruning of the study and Focused Review allow the entire study to maintain intact.
- By selecting the Star icon, it will change to yellow, this may be done at the creation of the event or in the events list by selecting the event then selecting the star delegating the event as important.
- These events may be viewed separately by selecting the Star icon in the Study Events Filing Cabinet or the Star icon on the menu ribbon at the bottom of the study.
- Events may be removed from Focus Review by selecting the star again at the individual event location.
- Notes may be edited by selecting the **Pencil** icon or deleted by selecting the **Trash** icon. •



Filing Cabinet Icon Study Notes



USER MANUAL









6.1.5 Stim Events

4

Stim Events include hyperventilation and photic stimulation.



Hyperventilation



Photic





6.1.6 Settings Events



Settings Events include Impedance Measurement, Filter, Montage, and Notch changes made during the study acquisition.



Settings Events

6.1.7 Other Events



Other Events include the study Start and Stop Recording, Bluetooth changes (weak signal, out of range, etc.), and other system events.

ISITIVITY //mm	TIME BASE		~	i	1	B	1	:
Margaren Margar	matter and a second		4	損		R.		*
-how were	man man and and and and and and and and and a	Ľ.		Jür	ne 24, 2	020		-
mon	man man		Vid	eo Sta	art			dis 125e tak
Mannes Walt		1	Star	t Rec	ording			11:26:27
mann	man frances	we have						11:26:27
- man man		je.			on Mo			14.05.00
mont	men manufactures and the second secon	-	Calibi	ation mo	de starteo			11:26:37

Other Events





6.1.8 Important Events

Important Events are starred events deemed important by the user. Once starred the events are now Focused Events for review, which allows for Non-destructing Pruning, so the study remains intact.



Important Events

6.1.9 More Options Menu Three Vertical Dots



In the **More Options Menu**, the user may locate the **Print** icon (below). The Print Epoch menu allows the user to select items included in the printing: Select Maintain Graph Scale, Show Everything, Patient demographics and Study information.

By choosing Select Print a PDF, an Adobe Acrobat Document File is created that may be printed or saved.



Print Epoch field selections





The **Select Theme** icon allows the user to select Dark or Light themes depending on the user's view preference. The Arrow pointing to the right will close Theme window.



Dark Theme

Light Theme

The **Toggle Time Setting** clock icon will allow the user to change how the time is viewed. Options are Elapsed Time, 12-Hour, or 24-Hour time increments. The time display along the bottom of the trace will change and the Playback Time on the bottom menu ribbon will change accordingly.



Elapsed, 12-Hour, or 24-Hour Time Setting



6.2 Event Banner and Ribbon Menu at bottom of trace

The large ribbon banner at the bottom of the graph will allow the user to move the length of study while displaying the time and date for the selected location. The highlighted sections on the ribbon allows the user to move to specific annotated events within the studies timeline.



Ribbon Banner

~	Minimize Controls downward facing arrow at the bottom left of the study will minimize the bottom menu to expand view of graph.				
Jones, L. Jan. 9 1960	The Patient demographics are displayed along the bottom menu.				
PLAYBACK TIME (24 hour)	The Playback Time in 24HR, 12 HR, and Elapsed time increments may be selected by the user.				
12:55:40 12/02/2020 00:00:12 TRT	The current Date, Time, and TRT Total Recording Time is displayed.				
*	Right Pointing Arrow icon, Follow Live Data, returns the user to the end of study or live video if the study is currently being acquired.				

6.2.1 The Arrows Radial Buttons Icons

3	The left facing arrow radial button icon will allow the user to reverse one epoch at a time.
	The large right facing Arrow Radial is the Play button which will advance the study as recorded.
	The right facing arrow radial button icon will allow the user to advance the study one epoch at a time.

The user may start and stop the study using the keyboard spacebar. The user may advance the study forward or backward a page at a time with the keyboard arrow keys. The user may advance the forward or backward one second at a time by pressing the shift key and arrow key.



6.2.2 Star Icon view Focused Review (from Non-Destructive Pruning)

	The Yellow left facing arrow radial button icon will allow the user to review each Focused Review event in reverse order.
	The yellow large right facing arrow radial Play button will advance the Focused Review events only as the study was recorded.
•	The yellow right facing arrow radial button icon will allow the user to review each Focused Review event moving forward.



When reviewing Focused Review Events, the user may span large amounts of time.

Deselect the Star icon to return to the previous view.

6.2.3 Real Time Icon



The **Real Time** icon allows the Play button to increase pages per second by moving the slide to the preferred number of pages to be displayed. There may be a delay while loading graph data to view. The video display will disappear when increasing the number of pages per second but will return when a single page per view is selected.

Maylandi yang fan di san gan yang yang yang yang yang yang yan	gradilitedine gradilitedine kysticitedine				
มงประเทศที่สายสูงอยู่หองประเทศไทยอาการเกิดสารการเกิดสารการเกิดสารการเกิดสารการเกิดสารการเกิดสารการเกิดสารการเกิ	สร้างสรุญชิงได้ของ 	70 μ	l sec	0	
00:01:04	00:01:05	00:01:06	00:01:07	00:01 . b8	00:01:09
0		00	*	4.6 pages/sec	23

Pages Per Second Control Slider



6.2.4 Graph Display



To increase the view of the graph, select the **Enter Full Screen Mode** icon (left). The graph will be displayed in full screen mode, to exit full screen mode select the icon again.



Full Screen Mode



6.2.5 Video Display



The **Toggle Video Display** icon allows the user the option to display the video or turn off the video display.

The Video Display on the graph may increase or decrease the size of the video by selecting the Plus or Minus sign on the video display window. The arrows in each corner of the Video Display window will move the Video Display to the selected corner of the screen.



Expanded Video Display

6.2.6 Measuring Tool

The measuring tool 70 uV/sec may be moved along the graph to measure microvolts per second.



Measuring Tool 7uV/sec



6.2.7 Individual Channel on graph

When you select a Channel Label, three icons will be displayed.



The **Minus** icon allows you to hide the entire channel from view. Select the Channel Label and select the **Plus** icon the channel will return to view.





The user may also select Change Non-EEG Setting on EKG, Chin, EMG, EOG etc. trace to change the frequency.



The **Measurement Ruler** icon allows the user to select an area on the channel and increase the area by dragging the cursor to display the measurements for the selected channel area.

Two boxes will appear. The user may create a comment for the measurement and select ok to keep the comment or select cancel to remove the comment.

The second box displays the measurements for the channel area selected.



Create Comment box/Measurement box





The user may edit the comment by selecting the **Pencil** icon. Delete the comment by selecting the **Trash** icon. Select the **Star** icon to add the event to the Focused Review.

The dropdown box allows the user to select additional channels to review the measurements.

erguson, Marcia × + help.rendrneuro.com/study/da767595-90	0.45 4600 6056 070850577 474						- D 0 & A
neip.rendmeuro.com/study/da767595-90	Jeo-400e-0050-970009555070	e					<u>५</u> म 😈
Alpha 2.4 - Testing							Rogness Marcia Ferguson
LOW FREQUE 0.5 Hz 0.0 Hz		HIGH FREQUENCY 70 Hz	NOTCH 60.Hz	SENSITIVITY	TIME BASE	~	i 🖪 🖻 📾
		Participant Participant Participant Participant Participant Partico Participant </th <th>* WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>	* WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW				
13:50:38	13:50:39	13:50:40 13	3:50:41 13:50:42	13:50:43	13:50:44 13	:50:45 13:	:50:46 13:
1000							
1, M.	PLAYBACK TIME (24 Now) 13:50:37 12/30/2020			•	\$7 1	-=+ K	

Measurement Tool Additional Channels Dropdown



7 Access to Studies

Rendr Portal users will have access to studies synced to the Rendr Portal.

On the Rendr Platform Acquisition software the user may select a specific amount of time to maintain studies. After the selected amount of time the study will be deleted from the Rendr Platform Acquisition software.



rendr[®]

Rendr 2.4 Portal Software

Lifelines Neuro Company 900 E. Main Street. Suite 300 Louisville, KY 40206 USA

www.lifelinesneuro.com

Tel: 866-889-6505 Email: support@lifelinesneuro.com

Imagine EEG Anywhere®